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Jeff Van Pelt

From: Helen Kim <hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com>
Sent: May 31, 2017 12:54 PM
To: Bill Prybyla; Jeff Van Pelt
Cc: Landon Roedding
Subject: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance May/17
Attachments: 170526 Expense Allocations.pdf

Hi Jeff and Bill, 
 
Please confirm the interco balance payable to Capital Corp as at May31/17. 
$405,794.94 

Here attached is a backup for Jeff McDowell reimbursement. 
For Jeff’s reimbursement, we allocated the expenses to BF Foods and Tender Choice. 
Please post them only TCF or 50/50. (if 50/50 BG Foods takes only half amount of HST posted and claim ITCs) 
Another one is $200 fee to amend the articles of Blue Goose Pure Foods Ltd. to the name Tender Choice Foods Inc. 
 
Interco with BG Foods receivable: $1,755,432.27 
Interco with Manitoulin receivable: $22,222.86 
 
Helen Kim | Accounting Manager 
.............................................................................................................................. 

Blue Goose Capital Corp. 
1 Adelaide Street East, Suite 2100 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5C 2V9 
.............................................................................................................................. 

W: 647-253-1322  F: 289-340-0294 
 
 

Motion Record Page No. 17



1

Jeff Van Pelt

From: Helen Kim <hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com>
Sent: June 30, 2017 12:01 PM
To: Jeff Van Pelt
Cc: Landon Roedding
Subject: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Jun/17
Attachments: DavidGaucher_2017_06 for Jul14-16 to Apr25-17.pdf

Hi Jeff, 
 
Please confirm the interco balance payable to Capital Corp as at Jun30/17. 
$497,743.96 

Here attached is a backup for David Gaucher’s reimbursement. 
Please post $1,975.69 including HST for only TC . 
 
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

Please note our new address: 
Blue Goose Capital Corp. 
99 Spadina Avenue, Suite 600 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5V 3P8 
.............................................................................................................................. 

W: 647-253-1322  F: 289-340-0294 
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Jeff Van Pelt

From: Maribeth Limfaylay <mlimfaylay@bluegoosepurefoods.com>
Sent: August 9, 2017 5:12 PM
To: Jeff Van Pelt; 'Henry Sale'
Subject: RE: interco balance - herewith are our numbers - transaction details

Hi Dean, 
 
Below are the transaction details from June to July for the I/C account between TC and BG Capital.  Hope it’ll assist in 
determining the reconciling items. 
 
 
 

 
 
Maribeth 
 

From: Maribeth Limfaylay  
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2017 5:02 PM 
To: 'Jeff Van Pelt' <jvanpelt@tenderchoicefoods.com>; 'Henry Sale' <hsale@hyos.com> 
Cc: Helen Kim <hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com> 
Subject: RE: interco balance - herewith are our numbers 
 
BG Capital                                           $ 874,818.68 
BG Foods                                             ($1,780,693.29) 
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Maribeth 
 

From: Jeff Van Pelt [mailto:jvanpelt@tenderchoicefoods.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2017 4:52 PM 
To: Maribeth Limfaylay <mlimfaylay@bluegoosepurefoods.com>; 'Henry Sale' <hsale@hyos.com> 
Subject: interco balance 
 
Just want to confirm the interco balances. 
 
BG  Capital  ($567,693.45) 
Blue Goose Foods $1,487,767.21 
 
Regards, 
 
Jeff Van Pelt, CPA, CMA 
Tender Choice Foods 
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Jeff Van Pelt

From: Helen Kim <hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com>
Sent: September 11, 2017 5:37 PM
To: Jeff Van Pelt
Cc: Landon Roedding
Subject: RE: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Aug/17

Hi Jeff, 
 
I think you charged Dean’s salary to Capital Corp. 
It should be with BG Foods. 
I think it will balance after you change the account to BG Foods. 
After posting Dean’s, Interco with BG Foods receivable is $1,794,928.37 
Please confirm. 
 
Helen 
 

From: Helen Kim  
Sent: September 11, 2017 05:27 PM 
To: 'Jeff Van Pelt' <jvanpelt@tenderchoicefoods.com> 
Cc: Landon Roedding <lroedding@bluegoosepurefoods.com> 
Subject: RE: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Aug/17 
 
Hi Jeff, 
 
The balance between Capital Corp is $914,843.32. 
Can you please review the attachments that I sent in previous email? 
 
Helen 
 

From: Jeff Van Pelt [mailto:jvanpelt@tenderchoicefoods.com]  
Sent: September 11, 2017 05:20 PM 
To: Helen Kim <hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com> 
Cc: Landon Roedding <lroedding@bluegoosepurefoods.com> 
Subject: RE: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Aug/17 
 
Helen to confirm the my balances: 
Capital Corp after the Dean charge: $907,769.40  
Manitoulin: $22,222.86 
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From: Helen Kim [mailto:hkim@bluegoosepurefoods.com]  
Sent: August 30, 2017 3:58 PM 
To: Jeff Van Pelt <jvanpelt@tenderchoicefoods.com> 
Cc: Landon Roedding <lroedding@bluegoosepurefoods.com> 
Subject: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Aug/17 
 
Hi Jeff, 
 
Please confirm the InterCo balance as at Aug31/17: 
 
Interco with Capital Corp payable: $914,843.32 
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Here attached are backups: 
1. Jeff McDowell’s reimbursement breaking down Expense and HST amounts  

- Feb/17 $408.97 
- Apr/17 $208.65 
- May/17 $710.75 
- Jun/17 $2,388.00 
- Jul/17 $541.24 

2. Expense paid by Capital Corp. Credit Card breaking down Expense and HST amounts 
- $9,701.23 

 
Interco with BG Foods receivable: $1,801,827.81 (Temp. waiting for Dean’s salary allocation) 
Eassons Trucking Invoices for TC portion 

 
 
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
Sent: October 2, 2017 3:39 PM
To: Jeff Van Pelt
Cc: Landon Roedding
Subject: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Sept/17
Attachments: InterCo_CC_PureFoods_2017_09.xlsx; JeffMcDowell_2017_09 for Aug 2017.pdf; 

DavidGaucher_2017_09 for Apr25 to Jul31-17.pdf

Hi Jeff, 
 
Please confirm the InterCo balance as at Sept30/17: 
 
Interco with Capital Corp payable: $953,795.87 

Here attached are backups: 
1. Expense paid by Capital Corp. Credit Card breaking down Expense and HST amounts 

- $3,403.95 
2. Expense paid by Capital Corp. cheques 

- $7,064.83 (should be capitalized for purchase of three Computers, HST will be claimed by Capital Corp.) 
3. Reimbursement breaking down Expense and HST amounts  

- Jeff McDowell: Aug/17 $1,347.33 
- David Gaucher: Apr-Jul/17 $1,045.57 
- Landon Roedding: TTC BBQ expense $39.90 

 
Interco with BG Foods receivable: $1,765,779.12 (Temp. waiting for Dean’s salary allocation) 
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
Sent: November 1, 2017 12:04 PM
To: Jeff Van Pelt
Cc: Landon Roedding; Tharssan Velmurugan
Subject: Pure Foods - InterCo Balance Oct/17
Attachments: JeffMcDowell_2017_10 for Sep 2017.pdf; DavidGaucher_2017_10 for Jul31 to 

Oct17-17.pdf

Hi Jeff, 
 
Please confirm the InterCo balance as at Oct31/17: 
 
Interco with Capital Corp payable: $951,001.75 

 
Interco with BG Foods receivable: $1,746,114.99 (Temp. waiting for Dean’s salary allocation) 
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
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Court File No.    
 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

 
B E T W E E N: 
 

DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC.  
in its capacity as court-appointed Receiver of all the assets, undertakings and properties 

of BLUE GOOSE PURE FOODS LTD. O/A TENDER CHOICE FOODS 
Plaintiff  

 
and 

 
 

BLUE GOOSE FOODS LTD. 
Defendant  

 
 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 
 
TO THE DEFENDANT(S): 
 

A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED AGAINST YOU by the Plaintiff.  
The claim made against you is set out in the following pages. 
 

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, you or an Ontario lawyer acting 
for you must prepare a statement of defence in Form 18A prescribed by the Rules of Civil 
Procedure, serve it on the Plaintiff's lawyer or, where the Plaintiff does not have a lawyer, 
serve it on the Plaintiff, and file it, with proof of service, in this Court office, WITHIN 
TWENTY DAYS after this statement of claim is served on you, if you are served in Ontario. 
 
If you are served in another province or territory of Canada or in the United States of America, 
the period for serving and filing your statement of defence is forty days.  If you are served 
outside Canada and the United States of America, the period is sixty days. 
 
Instead of serving and filing a statement of defence, you may serve and file a notice of intent 
to defend in Form 18B prescribed by the Rules of Civil Procedure.  This will entitle you to 
ten more days within which to serve and file your statement of defence. 
 

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN 
AGAINST YOU IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TO YOU.  If you 
wish to defend this proceeding but are unable to pay legal fees, legal aid may be available 
to you by contacting a Legal Aid office. 

Electronically issued             
Délivré par voie électronique

: 11-Dec-2018

Toronto

       Court File No./N° du dossier du greffe:  CV-18-00610576-0000
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IF YOU PAY THE PLAINTIFF(S) CLAIM, and $1,500.00 for costs, within the time for 
serving and filing your statement of defence, you may move to have this proceeding 
dismissed by the court.  If you believe the amount claimed for costs is excessive, you may 
pay the plaintiff(s) claim and $400 for costs and have the costs assessed by the Court. 
 

TAKE NOTICE: THIS ACTION WILL AUTOMATICALLY BE DISMISSED if it has not 
been set down for trial or terminated by any means within five years after the action was 
commenced unless otherwise ordered by the court. 
 
 
Date:       Issued by: _____________________________   
    Local registrar 
    393 University Avenue 
    Toronto, ON M5G 1E6 
 
 
TO: BLUE GOOSE FOODS LTD. 
 1 Adelaide Street East, Suite 2100 

Toronto, ON M5C 2V9 
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CLAIM  
 
1. The Plaintiff claims against the Defendant: 

a. Liquidated damages in the amount of $1,686,864.21 with respect to the 

indebtedness as described below; 

b. Pre-Judgment and post-Judgment interest in accordance with the Courts of 

Justice Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.C.43, as amended; 

c. The costs of this proceeding on a substantial indemnity basis; and 

d. Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just.  

2. The Plaintiff, Blue Goose Pure Foods Ltd. (“BGPF”) is a corporation incorporated 

pursuant to the laws of Canada.  

3. Pursuant to an Order of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice made on December 21, 

2017, Deloitte Restructuring Inc. (“Deloitte”) was appointed as receiver of BGPF. On or 

about May 25, 2018, Deloitte assigned BGPF into bankruptcy and Deloitte was subsequently 

appointed as the trustee.  

4. The Defendant, Blue Goose Foods Ltd. (“BGF”) is a corporation incorporated pursuant 

to the laws of Canada. 

5. BGPF and BGF are related entities.  

6. On or about January 31, 2017, by way of a transfer of working capital, the sum of 

$1,755,432.27 was advanced by BGPF to BGF (the “indebtedness”). At all material times, 

the indebtedness was reflected in BGFP’s financial records.   

7. The indebtedness was not subject to interest and was payable on demand.  
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8. As of this date, the balance of the indebtedness is the sum of $1,686,864.21 (the 

“balance”).  

9. Despite repeated demands, BGF has failed to pay the balance and the Plaintiff seeks 

liquidated damages in that regard.  

 
Date: 11 December 2018         GOLDMAN SLOAN NASH & HABER LLP 

Barristers & Solicitors 
480 University Avenue, Suite 1600 
Toronto, ON M5G 1V2 
 
Mario Forte – LSO #27293F 
Olga S. Morozova – LSO #67862S 
 
Tel:     (416) 597-9922 
Fax:     (416) 579-3370 
 
Lawyers for the Plaintiff 
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DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC.                                 
in its capacity as court-appointed Receiver of all the assets, 
undertakings and properties of BLUE GOOSE PURE 
FOODS LTD. O/A TENDER CHOICE FOODS 
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
 

Proceeding commenced at TORONTO 

 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 

  
 
GOLDMAN SLOAN NASH & HABER LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
480 University Avenue, Suite 1600 
Toronto, ON M5G 1V2 
 
Mario Forte– LSO# 27293F  
Olga S. Morozova – LSO# 67862S 
 
Tel: (416) 597-9922 
Fax: (416) 579-3370 
 
Lawyers for the Plaintiff  
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